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ENOX COLLEGE HISTOR Y.

The followinz is the intereitin2g lecture delivered by Dr.Gregg, Professor of Apohogetîcs and Church History in
1('x C>)llege, ai t te openiîîg of that institu ion ou Wednes-

day aftemnoon ast :
In the bistory of the Presbyîerian Cburch in Canada,

Ku0Ox Colleye is entiîled to occupy an i oporlani place.
Wiîbin ils wahls many f our ministers and missionaries, andOf Our tbeological professors and te tchers bave been îrained.
Tbrough these it bas been largehy influential in mjuhding
the character and habits of thinking of our people. lis tin-
flence, il may fairhy be claimed. bas ever been on bhe si ie
0f sound doctrine and vital religion. A review of ils bistory
fllaY therefore serve 10 awaken gratitude to God, who bas
1flade il an instrument of qood, and may at the saine lime
etiinulaîe botb professors aud students to a bigh r aprirecia-
lion o1 their responsibihities and t0 a more failhful discharge
Of teir duties. It inay also satisfy the frienîs of the institu -
tionI that their genemoui efforts on its bebsîf have not beenimuproductive of wotby reiuhîs. Wiîh these oljectî in view,
1 Propose 10 preseor iu Ibis lecture a brief sketch of the bis-
tory of Our college.

This college was opened for the training, of studenîs in
November, 11844. Previous 10 Ibis time, efforts had been
!iiade lib tis Province t0 train young men for th2 minîstryiu the Presbyîemian Churchi. Th--se may bc briefly noîiced.
In the year 1829, the United Presbyiery of Upper Canada,
aa meeting held in York (now Toronto.) entèred upon theco1nïideration of a plan for the esiablishmnent of a literary and
thç[)ia eiay and a commîrîce consisting of the

lýeV- essrs. B oByd and Stuart, was appt)inied îo takesteps lowards ils establishment. The United Presbyîery
"ad then twelve ministers on ils roll, most of whom had
COne from the Secession Churches of Scolatid, and Ireland,
"tId from Churches in the United States. The commiltee
agreed 10 pelition the Flouse of Asseînbly 10 aid lhetn by agant of land or money, but wiiboui any apparent result.
Aýbout this lime an informai corre;pondence took ptacc be-

t9leen Nir. Stuart and the seceîary of thie Canada E.locationAnd Missionary Society in Monîreal, regamding the eiîablish.
inn of a Ibeological seminamy, of whicb Kingston was sug-gsted as the prope r location. Formai communications wiîb
th'8 SOCiety were aid before Ibis Presybrery in 1830, but

I0hng definite was effecled. In the following year the
?resbyîery resolved - tbat a respect fui and imine liate

application be made 10 bis Excellency the Lieut. -Govemnor,Si' John Coîbomne, requesting him 10 procure tbe Unitedresbytery of Upper Canada the privilege of cboosîng a
Prole-ssor of divinity in King's College 10 sit in counicil andin Cvery respect 10 be on an equai footing witb the other
Professors iu said college." Trie charter of Kin.,'s College,
as i5 Wll known, bad heen oblained wiîh the avowed pur-
POs8e Of placiug trie edu -ation of ibis Province under the"Ontrloi of the Church of Enghand. According bo the char-tethie Bisbop of itbe Diocese, was 10 bc visitor of the col-
4%, ils president musc be a chergymnan of the Churcb of4ngland, the council was 10 consist of the chancellor,
Iie3ident aud seven otber members of the Cburch of Eng-flId, sud wbo were required 10 sign the Tbirty-Nine Artiches
9fthat Cburch. The Goverument of the country was Ibenthe bauds ofau oligarchy of a siînilar complexion.

Liîedeference was paid 10 resolutions of the House of
*148ertbly, wbich represenîed the people. In ibese circum-
.%aces i i not surprising that the app ication of the UnitedresbYtery sbould prove unsucceisful. In 1832, the UnitedPr&Yery, wbich bad now become the United Synod cf

1Per Canada, eutered upon the consîderation of a propos-il
establisb a literary aud theological seminamy ai Pleasantay nthe township of flillier, Prince Edwamd Cuniy,anaC.miee was appoinîed 10 procure a site and 10

flîld. Sscripîions towards the ereclion of the necessary
ings. But this. like previous efforts, provrd unsuccess-

th~no idIe United Syuod aftemwards succeed in esîab-ufld a theohîg ical seminary. Iu a private way, howeyer,
raî the superintendeuce of memberi of Presbytery, seve-WCCtudeuts were traiued for the miuistry, among wb'îm

.iî' Messrs. John Dickey, William Lemont, Duncan Mc-Il sudan r. James Cairns. The United Synod ceasedt ve a separate existence iu î85o, wbeu, witb sixteen1ý'nîtCrs on ils roll, il was uniîed wiîh the Synod of theres ytemj5a Churcb of Canada in connection wiîh the
ucof Scotland. It was for many years the only Pres-teiau Presbytery or Synod in Upper or Lower Canada.

asyenod in connection with the Cburcb .,f Scotland
OQ - a lu i Kingston, in 1839, wiîb nineteen ministers

i t roll ; sud soon afterwards t ook steps towards train-
it Mtudents for the nini-try. Iu 1822,, in accordance

onsa verture from the Rev. William Rintoul, iben
44 ler of York (Toronto) tbe Synod resolved to appoint

4acmnittee ito prepare an humble memorial 10 bis
tdi , cravi 'g bis Majesty's Govemnmenî b endow, with-5 ed1Cay, au institution or profeisorship for the educaiionWiîh traînin., of young men for the ministmy in connectionthe 1

aft.r e ynod." Similar resolutiuins were adopted year
-Uni Yealr, for several years. But, as binbe case of the
fr0 id Syuod ibe Scottishi Synod couhl obtain no help
a 'ý((vrret This was p-evented by the predomin-

COU15Eecutive Councils. Baffi-d lu this quarter, bol en-f1 rged On the oher haud by tbe promis;e of assistance
lZrdn th" Colonial Committee of the parent Chumcb in Scot-

Sh ;Ithe Syuod at last resolved 'o adopt measores 10 estab-

College " restored. This college was opened for the recep-
tion of students in Kinston * in March, 1842. The Rev.D. Liddell was appointed principal, and the Rev. P. C.
Camnpb;ll profesor of classics. Under these able and emin-
ent divinei, it was fondly hoped that Queen', Colldge would
have a cireer of uninterrupted succe-s in training an ade-
quite suppiy of ministeri. But, in 1844, occurred the dis-ruption of the Soottish Synod in Canada and the organiza-
tion of the Pfeïbyterian C iur--h of Canada, which, bccause
of its sympathy wit 'h the Free C¶iurch of Scotland, was comn-
monly called the Free Chu rof. Trie majority of the mini-sters-three-fourths-renained in the Synod in connec!ion
with the Chuich of ScorLland ; but near y ail the theological
stu lents cast their lot with the Free Church. The success
of Queens College, as a theological se'ninary, was thus-seriously arrested. But in more recent years the tide ofpro),periîy has returned, and at the presenit lime, with itls
fine buildings, rich endowment and able professors, htoccupies a foremost rank among the colle,,es of the country
in the training of students in theolo y, in arts, in Medicine
and in law.

The Synod of the Presbyterian Church of Canada, orFr ee Church Synod, was organized, with twenty-three
ministers on its roll, on the îoth July, 18S4- On the verynext day it resolved to take stepi towards the traininig ofyourig men for the ministry, and Presbyteries were directed
to enquire after young men of suiable character and gifts.
AÀt meetings of Commission andI Synod within the next fewmonths, arrangements were made for opening, if practicable,

a the,)ooical seminary. 0;1 the 5th November, 1844,arrrangeme nts having been compIetud, the seminary was
opened in Toronto-Toronto at this tifle contained a popula-
tion of about 18,5oo, the one-seventh or eighth part of its
present population-a few days later than the lime pro-
posed. The classes were conducied by the Rev. Henry
Esson, minister of St. Gabriel Street Church, Monîreal,
who had been appointed professgr of lilerature and science,
and the Rev. A. King (afterwards Dr. King), a Free
Church deputy, who was appointed interim prolessor ofdivinity, and who afterwards became professor of divinîty in
the Free Church Presbyterian College, Nova Scotia. The
number of students in attendance during the flrst session was
fourteen. Trie place of meeting was a room in the residence
of Professor Esson, on« James Street, near where Shaftes-
bury Hll now stands. " Its furniture (as described by acorrespondent of the Record,' May, 185 1) consisîing of a long
deal table, lwo wooden benches, a few chairs and a range,f shelves containing Mr. Esson's library and some books
kindly lent by clergymen and other friends for the use ofthe students during the Session." In the report of the
College Commitîee, given to the Synod of 1845, a high
tribute is paid to the fine talents, the warm enthustasni, and
academic taste displayed by Mr. Es-on, in his professorial
labours, and to the indtfatigable zeal and singular abiliîy
manîfested by Mr. King ini the direction of the theologicalstudies of the young men during the first session of theinfant college, and also to the encouraging progress and
satisfactory conduct of the students.

During the second session, that Of 1845-6, the numberof students in attendance ivas twenty-îwo, of whom haîf
were in the theological and haîf in the literary classes. Asin the flrst session, lilerature and science were taught byProfessor Esson. Lectures on" Systematic Theology "were given by Dr. Michael Willis, of Giasgow, who hadatained ro hiîgh distinction as a learned, acute and pro-found theologian, and who had come to this country on a
t-to porary visit as a Free Chut ch deputy. Lectures on.Church History," given by Dr. Robert Burns, formerly
minister in Paisley, Scotland, who had vi-ited thiscountry as a Free Church deputy in 1844, and who hadaccepted a catI to Knox Church, Toronto, into thepastoral charge of which hie was inducîed in 1845. Dr.Burns had been for fifteen years the most active and inde-fatigable secreîary of the Glasgow Colonial Misionary So-ciety, which had sent out a large number of ministeis 10 theBritish American provinces. In addition to the pastorale
of Knox Church, he was appointed Pofessor of Divinityin the college. Hii extensive knowledge of ecclesiastical
history, ancient and modern, and his long experience as apad;or fltîed him for the special work he now undertook.
Biblical Criîicismn and Hebrew were taught by Mr. Rintoul,
then minister of Streetsville, who, amidst his duties as apastor, and while taking an active part in the Home Mis.sion work of the Church, had nor omitted the cultivation ofsacred h -erature and the sîudy of Oriental languages, forwhich he had a special taste. During this session the col-lege met in Adelaide Street, and was furnished with avaluable lîbrary of between 2,000 and 3,000 volumes,which Dr. Burns, with clîaracterisîic energy. had collectedfrom frien Is of the college in Scoîland,' During this ses.sion, il May be added, impressive and stimulatinZ addresýes
were delivered to the sudenîs hy the Rev. Mr. Somerville,
of Glasgow (now Dr. Somerville), who, since resigning
bis charge, continues, at the age of fourscore, 10 labour asan evangelist wiîb w 'nderful energy -and success in alparts of the world ; by the Rev. Ra:ph Robb, of [Halifax,
aft--rwards well known and esteemed as the faiîhful andsuccess4ul pastor of Knox Church, Hamilton, in this pro-vince ; by the Rev. James Begg (afterward Dr. Begg), one
of the most distinguished leaders of the Free Churicb of
Scotland,_ and the Rev. William C. Burns, uephew of Dr.
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Cburch History and Pastoral Theology, Hebrew and Bibli.
cal Criticism were taught, as in the previous session, by
Professor Esson, Dr. Burns and Mr. Rintoul. Systematic
Divinity was taught by the Rev. Robert W. Corkhill,
who, like Mr. Ki ig and Dr. Willis, had come as a Free
Church deputy, and to whose great abilities, unwearied
labours and great success, a bigh tribute is paid in the
repoart of the College Committee. During this session
classes in Latin and Greek were taught by the Rev. Alex-
ander Gale, who had been appointed principal of the To-
ronto Academy. This institution was establisbed in 1846
as a preparatory school for the instruction of young men
intending 10 study Theology in Knox College, and of
others who might avail thýmselves of its advantages. Mr.
Gale had previously been the ruinister of Knox Cburch,
liamilton, and was for many years the Convener of the
Comnnittee on Home Missions. Both before and since
the disruption be was one of the most prominent leaders
and wîsest councîllors of the Presbyterian Cburch in Can-
ad a. The college met this session in the buildings in
Front Street, afterwards known as Lund's Hotel and
Queen's Hotel. Here il remained till 1854.

Besides the particulars which have been mentioued re-
garding the first three sessions of the college, there are
others to which a brief reference may be made. The stu-
dents were animnated by a deep, earnest, religiaus spirit,
which was developed in variouu forms of Christian work.
Tract distribution was engaged in, prayer meetings were
held, coniucted in English, in Gaelic, and also in French.
Missionary meetings were held and a missionary society in-
stituted, wbich contributed and collected funds for the sup-
port of missionaries 10 the French Canadian Roman Catho-
lics, 10 the Jews and 10 the heathen in India. During the
sumrmer, and to some extent during the winter mouîhs, the
studenîs laboured as catechists in the more destitute parts of
the country, and to their labours then, as now, the gather-
ing together and organization of many .of our congrega-
rions may be traced. It may he stated that the expenses
of the college (including the paymenî of one professor's
sahary) were confined within the limits of about $900 yearly.
The expense of sending deputies and some other expenses,
wcre defrayed by the Colonial Commitîce of the Free
Church of Scotland.

At the meeting of Synod in june, 1847, the affairs of
the college occupied a large measure of attention, and a
series of resolutions was adopted. Mr. Gtle, Principal of
the Academy, was formally appoiuted professor of classi-
cal Literature in the College. The prolessorsbip of Divin.
îty in the college was separaîed from the pastorale of Knox
Church, on the ground, among others, that the increase of stu-
dents required the undivided services of a professor in the de-
partment of Theology. Mr. Bayne (afterwards Dr. Bayne>, of
Gal, was appointed to proceed as a deputy 10 Scoîland, and
in concurrence with the Free Church Colonial Committee, 10
choose a fit and proper person 10 be a professor of Theo-
logy. The resuit was that Dr. Willis, whose qualifications
for the office hai already commended themselves to the
Church, was selected. He arrived in Toronto in the month
of December, and at once entered upon his work as profes-
sor of Theology. The duties of Ibis office he continued to
discharge for three and twenry years. I thîuk it is flot 100
much t0 say tbat t0 no other man is the Church more in-
debîed, under .God, for the sound evangelical doctrine
which is maintained by our ministers and prevails among
our people even t0 the present day-for il was no diluted,
vacillating, or molluscous theology he taught. The doc-
trines of grace, as fouud in the Scripîures and exhibited in
the Westminster Standards, he clearly unfolded. Ministers
who, wbeu students, listened 10 his lectures, still speak of
tbe clearuess, force aud power with wbich he expatiated on
the sovereignîy of God, ou the doctrines of predestination
and election, on the covenants of works aud grace, on the
vicarious nature aud definite purpose of the atonement, and
on ibose other great doctrines which relate to the person,
offices and work of Christ and of the third person of the
Godhead.

Having dwelt so long on the history of the earlier years of
Knox College, I must now proceed more rapidly. Between
the lime when Dr. Willis was appointed professor aud the
year 1861, wben the United Preshyterian Synod and the
Free Church Synod were united, the chief evenîs in the bis-
tory of the college are the followiug : Iu 1848 Mr. Rintoul,
having been released from the charge of the Streetsville
congregarion, was appointed intemim professor of Hebrew-
final arrangements as to this department being deferred until
il became apparent what provision was 10 be made for the
chair of Oriental Litemature in King's College. In the
same year the Synod resolved 10 take steps 10 procure the
services of a well.qualified tutor in Euglisb, Classical Liter.
ature and general mental traiuing. The result was the ap.
pointment of the Rev. M. Lyall, who rendered valuable
service 10 the college tili bis removal 10 Nova Scotia, where
he is now the emineut and esteemed professor of Meîaphy.
sies in Dalhousie College, Halifax.

In consequence of arrangements having been made for
teacbing Hebmew in University College, il became unneces-
amy t0 continue the Hebrew professorship in Knox Col-
lege. Mr. Rintoul, themefore, retired from Ibis position,
and accepîed a cal 1 St. Gabriel Street congregation,
Montreal, in î85o. He died in the following year while
on a missionary tour 10 Metis. In the years 1853 and 1854
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